Mr S Hearse TORRIDGE
Chief Executive DISTRICT

Torridge District Council COUNCIL
Riverbank House
Bideford

Devon

EX39 20QG

DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700

Date: 27 November 2020

MEETING OF COMMUNITY & RESOURCES

COMMITTEE
On: Monday 7 December 2020 At: | 6.00 pm
Venue: Virtual Meeting via Zoom with Public Access via YouTube
https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube - https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube

NOTICE OF MEETING

Temporary measures during the Coronavirus Pandemic:

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in the public forum are advised that
all Community & Resources meetings taking place during the Covid-19 Pandemic will be
filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the YouTube channel -
https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube

To: Councillor R Hicks (Chair)

Councillor D McGeough (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: D Brenton, C Bright, D Bushby, P Christie, A Dart, J Hutchings,
K James, N Laws, R Lock and R Wiseman

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting

AGENDA
PART | - (OPEN SESSION)

1. | Apologies for Absence
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting.

2. | Minutes of the Community & Resources Committee meeting held on 19th
October 2020 (Pages 4 - 15)

3. | Action List (Page 16)




Public Contributions

Public contributions in accordance with the current scheme. (The deadline for
registering to speak is by 2pm Thursday 3™ December 2020. To register please email
dem.services@torridge.gov.uk).

Forward Plan (Page 17)

Declarations of Interest

Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the
nature of their interest when the item is being considered.

Agreement of Agenda between Parts | and Il

Urgent Matters of information to be brought forward with the permission of the
Chair and the Committee

Notice of Motion - Campervan Overnight Parking in Churchfields Car Park,
Appledore (Pages 18 - 21)

To receive the report of the Head of Communities & Places

Written Notice of Motion from Councillor Ford

From next Easter, | propose that specific area is allocated for camper/mobile homes. |
would suggest the area currently where there are recycle bins, immediately in the car
park on the left. By my calculation, | think we could allow a maximum of 12. | would
also suggest increasing the fee to £15 per night and only one overnight stay per visit.
In conclusion, this would alleviate the problem of them blocking the footpaths, which
is the only safe route through the car park for many, especially those using
pushchairs and wheelchairs

10.

Councillor Community Grants Scheme (Pages 22 - 24)
To receive the report of the Head of Communities and Place

11.

Decision Taken Under Urgency Procedure (Pages 25 - 37)
To receive the report of the Head of Communities & Places

12.

Setting Aside Monies to Support the Capital Program (Pages 38 - 40)
To receive the report of the Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer

13.

Capital Programme Update with New PIDs (Pages 41 - 51)
To receive the report of the Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer

14.

Exclusion of the Public




The Chair to move:

That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part | and paragraph 10
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

15.

PART Il (CLOSED SESSION)

16.

Application for Hardship Panel (Pages 52 - 55)
To receive the report of the Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer

Meeting Organiser: Sandra Cawsey




Agenda Item 2

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES MEETING

Remote meeting via Zoom

Monday, 19 October 2020 - 10.00 am

PRESENT Councillor R Hicks (Chair)

Councillors D Brenton, C Bright, D Bushby, P Christie, A Dart,
J Hutchings, K James, R Lock and R Wiseman

ALSO PRESENT S Dorey - Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer
S Hearse - Chief Executive
D Heyes - Interim S151 Officer
S Kearney - Planning & Economy Manager
A Redwood - Property and Procurement Manager
R Haste - Waste & Recycling Manager

49.

50.

T Vanstone - Senior Electoral & Democratic Services Officer

P Labistour - Harbour Master

C Fuller - Economic Development Officer
H Bond - Estates Manager

K Brown - Democratic Services Officer

Councillors P Hames, C Cottle-Hunkin, A Inch, S Langford, C
Leather and S Langford

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor McGeough with Councillor
Hurley substituting and apologies received from Councillor Laws with Councillor
Hodson substituting.

MINUTES

Minute 26: Councillor Christie asked if his suggestion to have the Victoria Park
maintenance contract taken back in house was to be discussed?

The Chief Executive advised this matter is being dealt with more widely and would
be happy to discuss further in person as matter is in Part II.

It was proposed by Councillor Hicks, seconded by Councillor James and -

Resolved: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 2020 and the
Special meeting held on 5 October 2020 be signed as a correct record.

Page 4



51.

52.

A recorded vote was taken.

COUNCILLOR

TI
o
Py

AGAINST | ABSTAIN

Brenton, D

Bright, C

Bushby, D

Christie, P

Dart, A

Hicks, R

XXX X[ XXX

Hodson, C

Hurley, D X

Hutchings, J

X | X

James, K

Laws N

Lock, R

X

MeGeough—b

Wiseman, R X

(Vote: For 11, Abstention 1)

ACTION LIST

Minute 75 — Torrington Cemetery.

The Chair confirmed that work is being carried out with regards to this item so can
be removed from the Action List.

The action list was noted.

PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS

The Chair, Councillor Hicks declared a prejudicial interest — had carried out work for
the speaker, Mr Smith. As the Vice-Chair, Councillor McGeough was absent the
Chair proposed Councillor James be elected as Chair. The Chair left the meeting.

It was proposed by Councillor Hicks, seconded by Councillor Lock and -

Resolved: That the Councillor James take the Chair for this item

A recorded vote was taken.

COUNCILLOR FOR AGAINST | ABSTAIN

Brenton, D

Bright, C

Bushby, D

Christie, P

Dart, A

Hodson, C

XXX XXX [ X

Hurley, D

Page 5



53.

54.

55.

Hutchings, J X
James, K X
aws—N

Lock, R X
McGeough, D

Wiseman, R X

(Vote: Unanimous)

Mr Alan Smith addressed the Committee regarding Agenda item 11 — the covenant
for the Hotel Site, Westward Ho! He confirmed that he is in agreement with the
recommendation to cancel the previous covenant and replace with the one
recommended by the Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

FORWARD PLAN

The Chair, Councillor Hicks re-joined the meeting.
The Forward Plan was noted.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Declarations of interest were made when the specific agenda items to which they
related were under discussion.

AGREEMENT OF AGENDA BETWEEN PARTS [ AND i

It was proposed by Councillor Hicks, seconded by Councillor Lock and —
Resolved: That the Agenda as circulated be agreed.

A recorded vote was taken.

COUNCILLOR
Brenton, D
Bright, C
Bushby, D
Christie, P
Dart, A
Hicks, R
Hodson, C
Hurley, D
Hutchings, J
James, K
LawsN
Lock, R

McGeough, D
Wiseman, R X

(Vote: Unanimous)

TI
O
py)

AGAINST | ABSTAIN

XX XXX XX XX | X

x

Page 6



URGENT MATTERS OF INFORMATION TO BE BROUGHT FORWARD WITH
THE PERMISSION OF THE CHAIR AND THE COMMITTEE

There were no urgent matters brought forward.

MOORINGS & FACILITIES POLICY AND GENERAL DIRECTIONS

Prior to the report being presented the Chair advised the Committee that before
lockdown a meeting had been held with North Devon District Council which
included a detailed explanation of the law surrounding Harbours. It was apparent
that the organisation of the Harbour needs to be improved however a lot of work
towards this has been conducted since.

The Harbour Master, Paul Labistour presented the report to the committee with the
purpose of the report to present to Members, the Operational Moorings and
Facilities Policy, for consideration and approval and which has been recommended
for approval by the Bideford Harbour Board. Further a Strategic decision to be
made by the Committee on implementing General Directions for the safe and
efficient management of the Harbour in compliance with the Port Marine Safety
Code which has also been recommended by the Harbour Board.

A brief discussion then took place and it was confirmed by the Harbour Master the
area that is covered by Torridge District Council. A meeting regarding issues with
moorings and boundaries will take place soon with various Government agencies
which the Harbour Master advised Members they are welcome to attend and will
send out invites.

Following a query form Councillor Hodson the Harbour Master confirmed that
paragraph 9 from Appendix 2 on the policy can be removed.

Concern was raised to the use of Personal Watercrafts and speed restrictions in the
Harbour, the Harbour Master confirmed the following to queries raised:

e Appledore is outside the Authority’s area.

e |tis a National problem.

e Control is difficult

e A Harbour Revision Order could be applied for to enable more control and

will be explored going forward
e By Laws for the Harbour are dated 1894 so do not cover Jet Skis

The Chief Executive acknowledged the Members concern and referred to
Councillor Ford’s Notice of Motion with regards to the Jet Ski problem and advised
a meeting was taking place the next day with the intention that something will be in
place by Easter 2021.

It was proposed by Councillor Hicks, seconded by Councillor James and —

Resolved: That the recommendations as set out in the report be approved with the
amendment that paragraph 9 of Appendix 2 be removed.

Page 7



58.

A recorded vote was taken.

COUNCILLOR AGAINST | ABSTAIN

TI
o
Py

Brenton, D

Bright, C

Bushby, D

Christie, P

Dart, A

Hicks, R

Hodson, C

Hurley, D

Hutchings, J

XXX XXX X X[ XX

James, K

Laws N

X

Lock, R

MeGeough—b

Wiseman, R X

(Vote: Unanimous)

RESOLVED:

That the Moorings and Facilities Policy be implemented, and for Officers to proceed
to gaining Designated Status for the Board and to commence consultation on a

new set of General Directions for the Port be approved subject to the agreed
amendment.

That a budget be provided to enable the Waste and Recycling Manager and
Harbour Master to proceed with the implementation.

That paragraph 9 on Appendix 2 be removed from the policy.

PORT MARINE SAFETY CODE COMPLIANCE

The Chair advised that Port Security was also brought up at the joint meeting with
North Devon District Council.

The Harbour Master presented the report the purpose of which was to report to the
Community & Resources Committee on the role of the Harbour Authorities Holder,
their duties, powers and responsibilities described in the Port Marine Safety Code
and the Guide to good Practice on Port Marine Operations.

The Waste & Recycling Manager handed over to the Harbour Master, Paul
Labistour to present the report, the purpose of which was to report to the
Community & Resources Committee on the role of the Harbour Authorities Holder,
their duties, powers and responsibilities described in the Port Marine Safety Code
and the Guide to good Practice on Port Marine Operations.

It was proposed by Councillor Hicks, seconded by Councillor Lock and -

Page 8



59.

Resolved: That this Committee adopt the role as formal Duty Holder for Bideford
Harbour Authority.

A recorded vote was taken.

COUNCILLOR

TI
O
Py

AGAINST | ABSTAIN

Brenton, D

Bright, C

Bushby, D

Christie, P

Dart, A

Hicks, R

Hodson, C

Hurley, D

Hutchings, J

XXX XXX X X[ XX

James, K

Laws N

Lock, R

X

MeGeough—b

Wiseman, R X

(Vote: Unanimous)
RESOLVED:

That the Community & Resources Committee takes the role as formal Duty Holder
for Bideford Harbour Authority be approved.

COVENANT FOR THE HOTEL SITE WESTWARD HO!

The Chair, Councillor Hicks previously declared a prejudicial interest in this item
therefore it was proposed that Councillor James take the Chair. The Chair left the
meeting.

It was proposed by Councillor Lock, seconded by Councillor Hodson and -
Resolved: That the Councillor James take the Chair for this item

A recorded vote was taken.

COUNCILLOR FOR AGAINST | ABSTAIN

Brenton, D

Bright, C

Bushby, D

Christie, P

Dart, A

XXX XXX

Hodson, C

Page 9



Hurley, D

Hutchings, J

XXX

James, K

LawsN

Lock, R X

McGeough, D

Wiseman, R X

(Vote: Unanimous)

The Planning & Economy Manager presented the report, the purpose of which was
to consider the recommendation of the Internal Overview and Scrutiny Committee
made on the 29" September 2020.

Following concerns and queries from Members the Senior Solicitor and Monitoring
Officer confirmed that flats being used for residential use would not be permitted
under the new covenant.

The Planning & Economy Manager confirmed, following a query from Councillor
Christie that concerns with regards to the height of the new building would be
considered in the Planning process.

Councillor Hodson sort legal advice as to whether there would be a gap when
changing from one covenant to the other? The Senior Solicitor and Monitoring
Officer confirmed the transaction would be simultaneous.

Due to concern about the definition of Commercial use Councillor Brenton
proposed to defer this item and a further report be produced with clarification of
what can or cannot be put on the site. Councillor Hurley seconded the proposal.

The Chair sort legal advice from the Senior Solicitor and Monitoring Officer after the
new proposal and it was confirmed that as this item had previously been to
Community & Resources Committee and Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee if
agreement cannot be made at today’s meeting then the matter will be referred to
Full Council for a decision to be made on which recommendations to approve.

Following a query form Councillor Christie as to whether the offer of £120,000 still
stands with the change to the covenant the Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer
confirmed this was yet to be discussed until a decision had been made.

Councillor Bushby proposed to accept the recommendation from Internal Overview
& Scrutiny however there was no seconder.

It was proposed by Councillor Lock, seconded by Councillor Brenton and -
Resolved: That the recommendation of Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee to
remove the existing covenant, and to put on a new covenant requiring that the land

be used for commercial use only, be refused and that the item be referred to Full
Council.

Page 10



60.

A recorded vote was taken.

COUNCILLOR FOR AGAINST | ABSTAIN

Brenton, D

X
Bright, C X

Bushby, D X

Christie, P

Dart, A

Hodson, C

Hurley, D

Hutchings, J

XXX XXX

James, K

LawsN

Lock, R

>

MeGeough—b

Wiseman, R X

(Vote: For 10, Against 1)

RESOLVED:

That the recommendation of Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee to remove the
existing covenant, and to put on a new covenant requiring that the land be used for

commercial use only, be refused.

DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER URGENCY PROCEDURE

The Chair, Councillor Hicks re-joined the meeting.

The Planning & Economy Manager presented the report regarding the response to
the governments consultation — Changes to the current planning system.

Councillor Christie raised queries regarding viability of sites. Following Councillor
Christies comments and concerns it was advised that the 2" order consultation
ends on the 29™ October 2020 which may present the opportunity to respond.

The report was noted.

The second part of the report was presented by the Senior Solicitor & Monitoring
Officer, the purpose of which was to report to Members the implementation of both
the Standard and Discretionary Self Isolation Scheme made under the Urgency
Procedure.

Questions were asked by Members and the Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer
confirmed the following:

e Individuals would not have to repay any overpaid benefit if awarded due loss
of earnings through COVID-19 and would come under the Discretionary
Scheme.

Page 11



61.

62.

63.

e Potentially individuals could still be eligible under both schemes.
e £24,000 administration cost was set by central government and there is no
requirement to pay this back.

The report was noted.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

It was proposed by Councillor Hicks, seconded by Councillor Hurley and —
Resolved:

That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act (as amended) the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business because of the
likely disclosure of exempt information by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 and
Paragraph 10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

A recorded vote was taken.

COUNCILLOR

TI
O
py)

AGAINST | ABSTAIN

Brenton, D

Bright, C

Bushby, D

Christie, P

Dart, A

Hicks, R

Hodson, C

Hurley, D

Hutchings, J

XXX XXX X X[ XX

James, K

Laws N

Lock, R

X

MeGeough—b

Wiseman, R X

(Vote: Unanimous)

PART Il (CLOSED SESSION)

NOTICE OF MOTION - ATLANTIC RACQUET CENTRE

The Planning & Economy Manager invited Councillor Langford to present the
Notice of Motion to the Committee.

The Planning & Economy Manager presented the report, the purpose of which was
to consider Councillor Langford’s Notice of Motion referred from Full Council on the
14™ August 2020 and resolve whether to approve the recommendations in the
report.

Page 12



64.

10

It was proposed by Councillor Bushby, seconded by Councillor Brenton
and -

Resolved: That the recommendations in the report be approved.

A recorded vote was taken.

COUNCILLOR FOR AGAINST | ABSTAIN

Brenton, D

Bright, C

Bushby, D

Christie, P

XXX XX

Dart, A

Hicks, R X

Hodson, C X

Hurley, D

Hutchings, J

XXX

James, K

Laws N

Lock, R X

MeGeough—b

Wiseman, R X

(Vote: For 9, Against 1, Abstention 2)

MIDDLE DOCK

The Estates Manager presented the report.

It was proposed by Councillor Bushby, seconded by Councillor Christie
and -

Resolved: That the recommendations in the report be approved.

A recorded vote was taken.

COUNCILLOR

'I'I
O
Py,

AGAINST | ABSTAIN

Brenton, D

Bright, C

Bushby, D

Christie, P

Dart, A

Hicks, R

Hodson, C

Hurley, D

Hutchings, J

XX XXX XX XX | X

James, K

Laws N

Page 13



11

Lock, R X
McGeough, D
Wiseman, R X

(Vote: Unanimous)

BRIDGE BUILDINGS

Councillor Brenton left the meeting at 11:43am.
The Estates Manager presented the report.
It was proposed by Councillor Bushby, seconded by Councillor Christie and -

Resolved: That the recommendation as set out in the report be approved subject to
the agreed amendment.

A recorded vote was taken.

COUNCILLOR FOR AGAINST | ABSTAIN

Brenton. D

Bright, C

Bushby, D

Christie, P

Dart, A

Hicks, R

Hodson, C

Hurley, D

Hutchings, J

XXX XXX XXX

James, K

Laws N

Lock, R

X

McGeough, D

X

Wiseman, R

(Vote: Unanimous)

NON-RECOVERABLE DEBTS

The Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer presented the report.
It was proposed by Councillor Hodson, seconded by Councillor James and -

Resolved: That the writing-off of the debts listed in Appendix 1 attached to the
report be approved.

Page 14



12

A recorded vote was taken.

COUNCILLOR FOR AGAINST | ABSTAIN

Brenton. D

Bright, C

Bushby, D

Christie, P

Dart, A

Hicks, R

Hodson, C

Hurley, D

Hutchings, J

XXX XXX XXX

James, K

Laws N

Lock, R

X

MeGeough—b

Wiseman, R X

(Vote: Unanimous)

The meeting commenced at 10am and closed at 12:18pm

Chair: Date:

Page 15



9T abed

ACTION LIST

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE — 7 September 2020.

Minute
No.

Action

By Who

Date
Contacted

Completed

95.

NoM — Est. Direct Labour
Force

Detailed report comparing with
our CIPFA Nearest Neighbour
Authorities be presented to a
future meeting

This has now been passed to
Communications Team (HR)

Meeting 7.9.20 — SH to follow
this matter up with Harry
Roper with a report to be
brought back to the next
meeting.

S Hearse

H Roper

S Hearse

21.2.20

03.06.20

Email received from HR 3.6.20

Ongoing

Ongoing

¢ wa)| epuaby



COMMUNITY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN - 2020/21

Leadership 19 May 2020 9 June 2020 14 July 2020 25 August 2020 6 October 2020 24 November 12 January 2021 2 March 2021 6 April 2021
10am 2pm 2pm 2pm 2pm 2020 2pm 2pm 2pm
2pm
Community 29 June 2020 Special 27-July-2020 7 Sept. 2020 19 October 2020 | 7 December 2020 25 January 2021 15 March 2021 26 April 2021
& Resources 6pm 13 July 10am 6pm 10am 6pm 10am 6pm 10am
(Mondays) 4dpm CANCELLED
Finance Draft Outturn
Report (DH)
Performance QBR Q3 QBR2 QBR Q3
(Any (Any (Any
recommendations recommendations recommendations
from Internal from Internal from Internal
Scrutiny) Scrutiny) Scrutiny)
Other Urgency Notice of Motion | Special Meeting | Rec. from Int. O&S | Moorings Policy & | NoM (Clir Ford) NoM (ClIr Ford) —
Procedures — Free Car 17 August — use of surplus General Campervans (SK) Safety & noise
Parking (SK) £151k transferred Directions (RH) | (To Car Parking pollution in river
Covid-19 Financial Notice of Motion — to Transition in WG with recs to
Impacts Report Free Car Parking Government C&R as formal C&R) Torrington Cemetery
(SH) (SK) Funding Reserve Duty Holder for Extension (AR)
to meeting the Bid Harbour
pressure of Covid- Authority (RH) Councillor Grants Exclusive Rights of
PART I 19 & 2020-21 (£36K) Burial —(AR)
Apprenticeships Village Square —
Y Strategic Land (SH) Hotel site - Urgency NoM (ClIr Hames) -
8 Acquisition (AR) Village Square — Westward Ho! Procedure DG Aff/Housing target
) Hotel site - (SD) (SK) (SK)
= Westward Ho!
~ (SD) Urgency Play Strategy (SK)
Burton Art Gallery Procedure (SK) Capital Report
— Funding (SK/SH) (DH) Discretionary Grants
The Plough (DH) PART Il (SK)
PART II Non recoverable PART Il
Update on Major debts (SD) PART Il

Contracts (AR)

Bridge Buildings
Update (AR)

Burrows Centre
(AR)

Cleavewood
Disposal (HB)

Special meeting
5 October

Free car parking
(SK)

Middledock (HB)

Bridge Buildings
(HB)

NoM (ClIr
Langford_ -
Atlantic Racquet
Centre (SH)

Hardship Panel
(KB & DH)

Bideford Football Club
(HB)

Environ Centre (HB)
Cleave Wood

W Ho! Cricket Club
Lease (HB)

Budget Special
1 Feb 21 10am

Review of Car Parking
Charges (SK)

Capital Programme
2020-21 to 2026-27
(DH)

September 2021 C&R meeting — The Plough (to consider a further funding grant of £25,000)

G wa)| epuaby



Agenda Iltem 9

Agenda Item

REPORT OF Head of Communities & Place

To: Community and Resources Committee
Subject: Campervan overnight parking in Churchfields Car Park, Appledore
Date: 7" December 2020 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To consider the following written notice of motion proposed by Councillor
Ford and referred to this committee by Full Council.

From next Easter, | propose that a specific area is allocated for camper/mobile homes. | would
suggest the area where there are recycle bins, immediately in the car park on the left. By my
calculation, I think we could allow a maximum of 12. | would also increase the fee to £15 per night
and one overnight stay per visit. In conclusion, this would alleviate the problem of them blocking to
footpaths, which is the only safe route through the car park for many, especially those using push
chairs and wheelchairs.

1. INTRODUCTION

This report is intended to provide members with relevant information in order that they can be in
an informed position when resolving whether to support or reject the above written notice of
motion.

2. REPORT

Churchfields car park is a very popular car park in the centre of Appledore. During the summer
months Churchfields is often full during the day and very busy though the evening when normal
charging and enforcement has ended.

Since 2014 the Council has permitted the overnight parking of camper/mobile homes (between
6pm and 10am the following day) for a maximum of 2 consecutive nights. There is a specific
tariff for these overnight stays (£5 per night).

This initiative was designed to support the tourist economy by encouraging visits to our towns
where motorhomists might stay and spend in local establishments. The initiative has been well
received by motorhomists and businesses within our towns and we have received hundreds of
letters and messages of thanks and praise for its implementation. In 2014 the Council was
commended by the Federation of Small Business for the scheme because of the support it
provided for local economies.

There have been some objections to the scheme during the following years, almost exclusively
from local camp sites as there is an element of competition introduced.

This committee has previously debated whether motor home parking puts the Council in direct
competition motor home parks in the district. It was last agreed in December 2017 that this was
not the case and that the £5 per night for a max of 2 nights was appropriate because there were
no power, washing or waste disposal facilities provided to those who park.

Page 18




3.

After the end of the Covid 19 related lockdown in the spring and early summer of 2020 visits to
the area became extraordinarily popular, in part due to restrictions on over seas travel and
nervousness about the virus. In addition this area of the country had seen the lowest infection
rates and was viewed by many as one of the safest places in the Country to holiday in.

The car parks in our tourist resorts became very busy and this included a marked up turn in
overnight stays by motorhomists. In Churchfields car park alone between the 15" June and 30"
September 260 tickets for motor home parking were purchased through the pay and display
machines and more would have been recorded on Parkmobile. We are also aware that some
motor home parking occurs without charge as drivers can arrive after normal enforcement ends
and leave very early before it recommences.

This inevitably meant that an already busy Churchfields car park became busier. We received a
number of complaints that inconsiderate motor home parking was blocking the pavement that
runs along the Eastern boundary of the car park, that motorhomists were spilling out from their
vans into the car parks to create small encampments and that the beautiful views across the
Estuary were compromised for many by the large vans on the river’s edge.

The Appledore ward members both voiced concern about campervan parking in Appledore and
ClIr Ford in particular wished to suggest ways to improve the situation.

These complaints were largely valid and towards the end of the summer enforcement was
organised for late evening and very early morning to help manage these issues.

It is difficult to predict future trends in visitor activity but it is probably prudent that we should
expect an upturn in staycation visits over the next few years and therefore consider how we best
manage our facilities to cope with that increased demand.

IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications

To enact changes to the management of motorhome/campervan parking in Churchfields car
park the Off Street Parking Places Order will need to be amended following the prescribed
process.

Financial Implications

The costs of amending the Off Street Parking Places Order is estimated to be between
£5,000 and £10,000 depending on the scale of change and the extend of new or
replacement signage across the district’s car parking.

It is very difficult to predict the financial impact of changing overnight stay arrangements for
campervans/motorhomes. It is possible that there will be a modest decrease in stays thus a
small negative impact on the budget but that might be off set by an increase in the tariff.

It is likely that to make any change effective we will need to do more out of normal hours
enforcement patrols and this of course will increase the overtime salary spend.

Human Resources Implications
N/A

Sustainability Implications

Equality/Diversity
N/A

Page 19



Risk Management
The financial risks to the Council following the detrimental impacts of the Covid 19 crisis
have been previously considered and recognised by this committee.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
Parking services are delivered in accordance with the Off Street Parking Places Order 2018

Ward Member and Leader Member Views

ClIr Hicks - Lead Member for Economy 26/11/20

It is important that we manage our car parks to support the local economy and raise
important funds for the Council that enable us to effectively run our services. It is though
equally important that we listen to the concerns of our communities and Ward Members and
organise things so that they have as few negative impacts on our district as possible. | look
forward to the debate as we try to balance these tensions.

4. CONCLUSIONS

In Clir Ford’s notice of motion three substantive proposals are made:

1. That a specific area for around 12 motorhomes is created
2. That the charge for an over night stay is increased to £15
3. That only one night stays are permitted rather than the current two.

Members can obviously resolve to support the notice of motion but your officers respectfully request
the opportunity to suggest some alternative ways of managing the problems in Churchfields car
park.

To address the first point in the Notice of Motion. It is the view of your officers that this proposal,
whilst physically possible, would be difficult to enforce and would limit the parking spaces available
for other users of the car park and therefore reduce our income generating capacity. The intention
of the proposal is to limit motorhome parking and to keep them away from the riverside where they
block the pavement and the view for others. Officers believe that these intentions can be more
easily managed, without the risk of income reduction, need for physical adaptation or additional line
marking by prohibiting campervan/ motorhome parking in the spaces on the right hand side of the
main route through the car park (on the river side). Camper vans would therefore only be able to
park in the spaces on the left hand side of the main route, away from the pavement and river side,
thus not causing obstruction of passage or view. Extra signage would be required to make
motorists aware of these new restrictions.

To address the second point. The price point of £5 per night was set in 2014 and has not increased
since that time. Your officers feel that there is some scope for an increase (not only for Churchfields
but all permissible car parks) without making the very popular over night stay unattractive to visitors.
It is suggested that members consider a more modest increase of £3 (to £8 per night) It is felt that
this would be reasonable given that no facilities are provided for users other than a parking space.

To address the third point. If members wish to limit overnight stays to one night, rather than two,

they might consider making that arrangement for Churchfields car park only, rather than all
permissible car parks, as no objections to the status quo have been reported elsewhere.

Page 20



Whichever ever proposal is approved, it is recommended that it's success in addressing the issues
raised is kept under review and that a report on that should be brought to Internal Overview and
Scrutiny in 12 months for members to debate.

It is intended that any amendments to the Off Street Parking Places Order would be in place for
enforcement to by Easter 2021. What ever members resolve in relation to these matters it will be
essential that additional enforcement is provided to ensure compliance. This will come in the form
of out of normal hours patrols and will increase the staffing costs of the service.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That Members consider whether to approve or the notice of motion, or;

2. Approve the alternative proposal for the zonal restriction of camper van parking as
set out in the report with an increase to £8per night,and;

3. Consider whether a maximum one or two night stay should be applicable to
Churchfields car park, and;

4. Authorise officers to seek amendment to the Off street Parking Places Order as
necessary

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Chief Executive, Head of Legal and Governance, S151 Officer
Contact Sean Kearney

Officer:

Background

Papers:

Page 21



Agenda Item 10

Agenda Item

Report of :

Head of Communities and Place
To: Community and Resources Committee
Subject Councillor Community Grants Scheme
Date: 23" November 2020

PURPOSE OF REPORT:

To have members consider whether £1,000 should be reapplied to each Clir Community Grant
allowance and whether the scheme should be slightly revised to assist in Covid Community
response or recovery.

1. INTRODUCTION

The Councillor Community Grants Scheme has now been in operation for over eight years. As the
scheme stands at the beginning of each financial year members will be allocated £2,000 that they
can use to assist community groups and organisations within their wards. During financial year
20/21the decision was taken to reduce that allocation to £1,000 and to use the £36,000 (along with
the unspent allocations from the previous financial year) not allocated to distribute to Parish
Councils so that they could use the funds for local covid community response.

When the impact of this distribution of funding was evaluated it became evident that the
overwhelming majority of town/ parish Councils had not used the funding as it had been intended
that they would and that we should find alternative ways to assist the communities that need
assistance. The decision was therefore taken to recoup the funding from the parishes/towns.

2. REPORT

The simplest solution to this problem appears to be the reallocation of £36,000 to the ClIr Grants
scheme and to amend the criteria of the fund so that ClIrs can assist their communities adequately.

The following extract from guidance notes on Councillor Community Grants explains the current
rules of the scheme:

What is it for?

* Projects and activities that benefit the residents of your ward.
* One-off items of revenue or capital expenditure.

What/Who is not eligible?

. Retrospective funding.

Page 22



. Twinning activities that take place in appropriate Wards, and support local community events
with open access, are eligible. Grants cannot be awarded for twinning activities outside of the UK.
. Grants direct to Parish Councils.

. Repeat funding for the same project.

. Activities contrary to Council policies.

. Activities which the authority has no legal powers to fund.

. Political activity.

. Hospitality.

. Donations to charitable organisations.

. Commercial organisations.

. Grants that seek to cover core organisational costs such as employees, rent, utility costs, will
not be considered. Costs to support the work of volunteers will be considered.

. Grants for activities that promote religious beliefs. However, for the avoidance of doubt

religious organisations can receive grants for the community and social aspects of their activity,
where they do not restrict access to the project from their own religion, or other religions.

Who can apply?

. Any group based within your ward, or beyond the ward where their activities benefit the
residents of that ward, e.g. voluntary and community groups, schools, and clubs.
. The group does not have to be a registered charity but will need to have a bank account (or

identify another organisation who can act as banker for funds). The group will also require a
constitution, terms of reference or a set of rules.

. Groups/projects will need to prove the funding is needed (e.g. through supplying accounts,
current bank account, where possible.
. Grants are not available to an individual.

What is proposed for use of the £1,000 that will be reapplied to each Clir’s allocation?
e That all of the above remains relevant but that Clirs would also be able to make donations
(rather than only support projects) to charitable bodies, constituted not for profit

organisations or parish/town councils for activities relating to community covid 19 response
or recovery.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications

None.

Financial Implications

Within existing budget.

Human Resources Implications

None

Sustainability Implications

None

Equality/Diversity

Page 23



Incorporated into the eligibility criteria for the Councillor Community Grants Scheme

Risk Management

There is a risk that organisations could make application to the Councillor Grant fund in order to
relieve themselves of financial exposure to projects that they wish to support. This might come at
the expense of other eligible groups and projects with a community. This risk can be mitigated by
the careful management of the grant scheme by Clirs and Officers who are able to decide on the
eligibility of an application and it's accordance with the rules of the scheme.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies

The Councillor Community Grants Scheme helps to engage and empower communities

Ward Member and Lead Member Views

Date of Consultation — 23" November 2020

Clir Cottle Hunkin — Lead Member

4. CONCLUSIONS

I discussions with Clirs it has become evident that they are still very keen to support the local
response to the covid pandemic. It would seem that the distribution of the £36,000 to
parishes/towns did not have the required impact and that reallocating those funds to ClIr grants, with
a relaxation on criteria, might be a better way to assist communities through these hard times.

5. RECOMMENDATION

That Members consider whether to use the unspent £36,000 to reapply £1,000 per Clir to the

Councillor Grants Scheme and revise the eligibility criteria in order that donations can be made to
appropriate organisations to assist in the Covid 19 community response and recovery.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Consultations: ClIr Cottle Hunkin — Lead Member
Date of Consultation — 23 November 2020.
Officers Consulted -

Chief Executive, Head of Legal and Governance, S151 Officer.

Contact Officer: Sean Kearney

Page 24



Agenda Item 11

REPORT OF Head of Communities & Place

To: Community and Resources Committee
Subject: Decision taken under Urgency Procedure
Date: 7" December 2020 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:
To report a decision taken under Urgency Procedure

INTRODUCTION

Recently, in relation to the Covid lockdown that commenced on the 5™ November and any
subsequent lockdowns or restrictive tier arrangements, the Government announced a range
of grant funds that ware intended to support local business that suffer as a result.

It was important that the various schemes were open for application as soon as possible and
therefor, in the case of the Additional Restrictions Grant, it was necessary to devise and
launch the scheme before it could be presented to Community and Resources Committee.

The attached policy allows the fund to be spent over this financial year and the next as is the
intention of Government. The policy specifically holds back 50% of the fund until next year
(20/21) as it is felt that businesses will still be in need then. The intention is to bring a report
to Committee for a decision as to how to administer this and how business support services
that will have a lasting impact beyond that of any grant might form an element of how we use
part of the £1.34M budget that has been allocated for Additional Restrictions Support.
REPORT

See attached Additional Restrictions Grant policy and urgency procedure form.

IMPLICATIONS

Leqgal Implications

N/A
Financial Implications

N/A
Human Resources Implications

N/A
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications

N/A
Equality/Diversity

N/A
Risk Management

Page 25



N/A
Compliance with Policies and Strategies

Data Protection (GDPR) Implications

Climate Change

N/A

Ward Member and Lead Member Views
Date of Consultation — N/A

4. CONCLUSIONS

N/A
5. RECOMMENDATIONS

The member note the decision made under urgency procedure.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Date of Consultation —Chief Executive, Leader, chair of
Community and Resources Committee.
Officers Consulted -

Contact Officer: Sean Kearney

Background Papers:

Page 26



Torridge District Council
20/11/20

Additional Restrictions Grant Policy

1. This support will take the form of a funding scheme in Financial Year 2020-2021 and can be
used across Financial Years 20/21 and 21/22. The scheme is called the Additional Restrictions Grant
(ARG)

2. The Local Authority can use this funding for business support activities. This will primarily
take the form of discretionary grants, but will also be used for wider business support activities

3. Where the ARG is used for direct business support grants, the same conditions of grant
apply as for the Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed), however the Local Authority will have the
discretion to alter the amount of funding offered to individual businesses and the frequency of
payment.

4, National and local restrictions are legally binding restrictions imposed where the Secretary

of State for Health and Social Care requires the closure of businesses under regulations made using
powers in Part 2A of the Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984 in response to the threat posed
by coronavirus and commonly as part of a wider set of measures.

5. The Local Authority can determine how much funding to provide to businesses
from the ARG funding provided, and exactly which businesses to target.

6. The Local Authority will develop a local discretionary scheme to help those businesses which
— while not legally forced to close — are nonetheless severely impacted by the restrictions put in
place to control the spread of Covid-19.

7. The Local Authority will develop a local discretionary scheme to help businesses outside the
business rates system, which are effectively forced to close

8. The Local Authority will develop a local discretionary scheme to provide additional support
to larger local businesses which are important to the local economy, on top of the funding provided
to those businesses via the LRSG (Closed) scheme, with due reference to State Aid.

9. In taking decisions on the appropriate level of grant, the Local Authority will take into
account the level of fixed costs faced by the business in question, whether they are unable to trade
online and the consequent scale of coronavirus losses

10. The grant amounts given to individual businesses will be subject to state aid limits.

11. Businesses that have already received grant payments that equal the maximum levels of
State aid permitted under the de minimis and the Covid-19 Temporary State Aid Framework will be
excluded from the scheme

12. For the avoidance of doubt, businesses that are in administration, insolvent or where a
striking-off notice has been made, are not eligible for funding under this scheme

13. Where a grant is issued, the business who, according to the billing authority’s records, was
the ratepayer in respect of the hereditament on the date LCAL 3 or national restrictions first came

Page 27



into force, is eligible for the grant. Where a Local Authority has reason to believe that the
information that they hold about the ratepayer on the first full day of national or LCAL 3 restrictions
is inaccurate they may withhold or recover the grant and take reasonable steps to identify the
correct ratepayer. Local Authority should make clear to recipients that the grant is for the ratepayer
and may be liable for recovery if the recipient was not the ratepayer on the eligible day. Some
businesses outside the business rate system may also receive grants.

14. Businesses must have been trading on the day preceding the first full day of national or LCAL
3 restrictions to be eligible to receive a grant support

15. The business must confirm that by accepting the grant they are eligible for the terms of the
scheme
16. Businesses will need to notify their Local Authority if they no longer meet the eligibility

criteria for additional grants (for example, if they become insolvent)

17. Grant income received by a business is taxable. The Additional Restrictions Grant will need
to be included as income in the tax return of the business. Only businesses which make an overall
profit once grant income is included will be subject to tax

18. Any business caught falsifying their records to gain additional grant money will face
prosecution and any funding issued will be recovered, as may any grants paid in error

19. The digital due diligence tool Spotlight will be used as part of the payment assurance process
—to be confirmed by S151 Officer

20. The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) tools will be used as part of the post payment assurance
process completed by Exchequer

21. The Local Authority will follow BEIS guidance and conduct activity to provide assurance that
the grants have been paid out in line with the eligibility and State aid conditions for these schemes

22. The general principle applies that Local Authority are responsible and accountable for the
lawful use of funds under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. The Section 151 Officer
within the Local Authority is required to exercise their duties in line with the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) guidance, ensuring their oversight of the proper
administration of financial affairs within the Local Authority, including these grants.

23. The Local Authority must be satisfied that all State aid requirements have been fully
complied with when making grant payments.

24, The Local Authority will develop pre and post-payment assurance plans for each grant
scheme. There should be an eligibility check and a recipient check on all payments, whether pre- or
post-payment. The plans should set out the actions and checks Local Authority will undertake to
ascertain regularity of payments. They should cover the pre-payment checks for grants still to be
paid, but also the post payment assurance checking regime that the Local Authority will introduce to
identify irregular payments

25. The volume and depth of checks that the Local Authority undertakes as detailed in these
plans should be proportionate to the grant value versus the cost of the check, and informed by a
Fraud Risk Assessment of the likelihood of error and/or fraud in the payments they have made.

Page 28



26. Fraud Risk Assessments should also be undertaken for each grant scheme and comprise part
of the assurance plan using the risk assessment templates tailored to the relevant funds provided by
BEIS

27. The Government Grants Management Function and Counter Fraud Function will be used to
support the Local Authority to carry out post-event assurance work to identify high risk payments
and to estimate and measure the likely incidence of fraud and error that has occurred in the scheme.
This requires statistically significant sample testing of key residual risks to assess the level of
fraud/error that has arisen from the residual aspect of identified fraud risks. Post-event assurance is
therefore dependent upon a detailed fraud risk assessment being undertaken for the scheme.
Guidance from BEIS will be used to support the development of Post Event Assurance Action Plans

28. Where checks discover that payments have been made in error or have been claimed as a
result of fraud, any initial recovery action will be undertaken by the Local Authority

29. Monitoring and reporting information regarding the scheme will be provided to BEIS as
required
30. If a Local Authority detects fraud (successful rather than attempted), or if they suspect fraud

(attempted as well as actual) that is organised, large scale systematic, or which crosses Local
Authority boundaries, they must report it in real time. We recommend a Local Authority report it
simultaneously to the dedicated inboxes at the National Anti Fraud Network (intel@nafn.gov.uk) and
the National Investigation Service (report@natis.pnn.police.uk). Local Authority may be contacted
for further information to assist with lines of enquiry being pursued

31. This monitoring and reporting is in addition to any relevant reporting requirements to the
EU Commission under State aid rules

32. The scoring matrix takes the average monthly income prior to application period (based on
previous three months bank statements), less the income during the application period, plus the
average fixed property costs incurred during restrictions (taken from most recent bills), to calculate
the total cost to the business of the restrictions period. The grant awarded will be the at the stage
below the total loss during restrictions calculated by the scoring matrix

33. Budget codes will identify the payment tranche and restriction level

34, BACS payment will be made weekly, on a Tuesday. Payments will reach the applicant’s bank
account on a Thursday. All paperwork to be with Exchequer by 2pm on Monday to enable them to
go into the payment run on the Tuesday

35. Only evidence uploaded at the time of application will be considered. Incomplete or invalid
evidence will not be included and may affect the amount of grant awarded. If the assessor cannot
process the application because they do not have sufficient, valid evidence the application will be
rejected and the applicant instructed to reapply with brief feedback on the reason for rejection

36. There is no appeals procedure and the Council’s decision is final

37. 30% of costs for businesses who operate from a domestic premise rather than a business
premise, will be used in the grant calculation. This reflects there is a domestic element in the costs
provided

Page 29



38. Where possible applications should be submitted every 14 days. In the event an applicant
misses an application period (s), at their next application they will be asked to submit evidence that
covers all application periods missed and their grant award will cover all applications periods missed

39. The Local Authority has the discretion to pay grants to the same businesses or to different
eligible businesses in subsequent qualifying periods.

40. In applying their discretion on the amounts of grant, types of support and the eligible
businesses for each qualifying period the Local Authority will adapt their approach to local
circumstances, such as providing support for micro-businesses with fixed costs or support for
businesses that are crucial for their local economies. All businesses who receive support must have
been affected by the pandemic. The wider business support will be subject to the Local Authorities
procurement process

41. The eligibility criteria, application process, scheme paperwork, grant amount, type of
support offered and application period for the scheme will be reviewed at the Local Authority’s
discretion, including when the area moves between different levels of restrictions. The Local
Authority will decide which, if any criteria to change. Any changes will be documented within this

policy.

DISCRETION APPLIED AT NATIONAL LOCKDOWN LEVEL

42, If a business has a property with a rateable value of £51,000 or above, or received a £25,000
Discretionary Grant they can apply to this grant scheme every 28 days the national restrictions are in
force. The same application process will be followed as for the 14-day applications but there will be
an additional grant award level of £1500 per 14-day period. An eligible business can apply for this
grant award, even if they have already received the LRSG (Closed) with Addendum

43, Second and subsequent applications will use a shorter application process. At the start of
every three- month period (November — January, February — April etc) all applicants will need to
complete the full application form and update the evidence provided. The full application form will
also need to be done when there is a change to the restriction level

44, In order to apply a fair, transparent and quick process, applicants will not be asked to
calculate any figures, instead they will be asked to upload copies of their most recent bank
statements and fixed property costs bills. These will be input into the scoring matrix which uses
formulae to convert the figures to a daily amount, thereby allowing a figure for both reduction in
income and fixed property costs incurred for each application period to be calculated. The grant
amount awarded will be the grant immediately below the figure calculated

45, The Local Authority has set the grant levels at £250, £450 and £667 each 14-day period of
national lockdown

46. In addition to points 11 and 12, additional exclusions in force at the start of the scheme are
businesses in the accommodation sector that advertise solely on Air BnB, businesses in the
accommodation sector that are second homes that are also let to paying guests, Bed and Breakfast
business with more than 6 letting rooms, businesses who were not open as usual and providing in-
person services to customers up to 4th November 2020 and who did not intend to continue trading
after 4th November 2020, businesses that have chosen to close but have not been required to as
part of the national restrictions, businesses that are able to continue to trade as normal because

Page 30



they do not depend on providing direct in-person services from premises and can operate their
services effectively remotely and businesses who were an undertaking in difficulty before 31st
December 2019 and market traders where their home address or commercial premises address is
not within the Local Authority’s area. The location of the markets they attend will not be considered
as part of this grant scheme

47. Once this policy has been approved, subsequent amendments can be done by way of
delegated authority to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader

Page 31



URGENCY PROCEDURE

Officer: | Sean Kearney Position: | Head of Date: | 20/11/2020
Communities
and Place

Subject of Urgency: Additional Restrictions Grant

Reason for Urgency:

On the 315t October the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy
published guidance on the Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG), a scheme intended to
support businesses and economies and to provide additional support to grant funding
under the Local Restrictions Support Grant.

The ARG is a discretionary grant scheme so the Local Authority can decide (within the
realms of the spirit of the guidance) to apply local discretion to it’s application and
delivery.

The funds available for use under the ARG total £1.43m and can be used across
financial years 20/21 and 21/22.

Officers have prepared a Torridge District Council/ North Devon Council specific
application and assessment process that will govern the delivery of a grant scheme
and the redistribution of much needed support to the business community. Grant
assessment will be undertaken by ND+ and TDC staff as was the case with the
previous discretionary grant scheme.

The attached Additional Restriction Grant Policy details the rules by which we will
manage the ARG across Northern Devon and the discretions that have been applied by
the Local Authority in order that the scheme is relevant to the local economy.

The suggested policy allows the fund to be spent over this financial year and the next.
The policy specifically holds back 50% of the fund until next year as it is felt that
businesses will still be in need then. The intention is to bring a report to a future
Community and Resources Committee for a decision as to how to administer this and
how some of the funds might not be given out in grant form but instead be used to
provide business support services that will assist with the Covid recovery and have
lasting benefit for the local economy.

To wait for the next Community and Resources Committee would mean unreasonably

withholding financial assistance intended to support local businesses and therefore it
is requested that the policy is approved under urgency procedure immediately.

Subject to approval the scheme will open for application on the 215t November 2020.

Ward and/or Lead Member(s) comments:

Page 32




Date:

Strategic Director (Resources)’s Agreement:

Signed: N / T 8 Date:

Member Agreement:

Signed: STE ATTACHED EMAIL  COVARMAT o~ Date:

Leader of Council / Deputy tesder of Councit*

Signed: SEE& ATTACHED TMAIL ConERMAT onl Date:

Chairman / Miee-Gheairman-ef-Community-& Resources Committee*

HoPS/Strateaic Mana@er Apbroval of Decision:

Signed: Date: 9—7, 1 ’10
1

*delete as appropriate”

Once completed a copy of this form should be given to the Democratic Services

Manager for record purposes.

IMPORTANT: Please ensure that a report is prepared for the next Community &
Resources Committee meeting in accordance with the Report Writing Protocol.

Page 33




Sean Kearney

I S
From: Councillor James K

Sent: 20 November 2020 11:33

To: Sean Kearney

Cc: steve Hearse, | EGNGNGNGEGNGEGEGEE

Subject: Re: Additional Restrictions Grant Policy Urgency Report

Yes thats fine with me
Ken

Sent from my iPad

On 20 Nov 2020, at 09:54, Sean Kearney <Sean.Kearney@torridge.gov.uk> wrote:

Hi All

Please can you take a look at the attached report and Policy and, if you are happy, indicate to
approval by return email.

If we get your approval today we can launch the scheme for application in the morning.

A joint TDC/ NDC press release has been prepared and we are ready to go on the website and social
media. We have also got the electronic application waiting to go live and ND+ lined up to do the
application assessments.

For info, NDC have just approved the same policy as we have developed it jointly.

Thanks and sorry for the urgency

Sean

Sean Kearney Head of Communities & Place

Torridge District Council Riverbank House, Bideford, EX39 2QG

Phone 01237 428708
Email sean.kearney@torridge.gov.uk

<image001.png>

<Covid19 ARG Policy Urgency Report.doc>
<ARG Policy Nov 20.docx>

Page 34



Page 35



Sean Kearney
L o _ ______________________________________________________________________________ ]

From: Robert Hicks |

Sent: 20 November 2020 11:05

To: Sean Kearney; Steve Hearse; Councillor James K
Subject: RE: Additional Restrictions Grant Policy Urgency Report
Fine with me

Bob

From: Sean Kearney <Sean.Kearney@torridge.gov.uk>

Sent: 20 November 2020 09:55

To: Steve Hearse <Steve.Hearse@torridge.gov.uk>; Councillor James K <Councillor.James@torridge.gov.uk>; Robert
Hicks

Subject: Additional Restrictions Grant Policy Urgency Report

Importance: High

Hi All

Please can you take a look at the attached report and Policy and, if you are happy, indicate to approval by return
email.

If we get your approval today we can launch the scheme for application in the morning.

A joint TDC/ NDC press release has been prepared and we are ready to go on the website and social media. We
have also got the electronic application waiting to go live and ND+ lined up to do the application assessments.

For info, NDC have just approved the same policy as we have developed it jointly.
Thanks and sorry for the urgency

Sean

Sean Kearney Head of Communities & Place

Torridge District Council Riverbank House, Bideford, EX39 2QG

Phone 01237 428708
Email sean.kearney@torridge.gov.uk

torridge.gov.uk @torridgedc

For information on data protection and how your personal data is used please see our Privacy Policy at
https://www torridge.gov.uk/privacypolicy

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed..

If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or other action taken in reliance of the information contained in this e-mail
is strictly prohibited. If you have received this transmission in error, please use the reply function to tell us and then permanently delete what you
have received.

Any views expressed by the sender of this message are not necessarily those of the Torridge District Council.

Page 36



E-mail is inherently insecure without specific security measures being taken. In essence we cannot guarantee the safe and private delivery of all e-
mail, both outbound and inbound, due to the complexity and nature of the networks that it may utilise. Please bear this in mind when sending critical
or sensitive information.

Senders and recipients of email should be aware that under UK Data Protection and Freedom of Information legislation these contents may have to
be disclosed in response to a request. Under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000, Lawful Business Practice Regulations, any E-mail
sent to or from this address may be accessed by someone other than the recipient for system management and security purposes.

This email and any attachments have been checked for viruses however you should carry out your own check before opening any attachments.
Torridge District Council enforces a corporate wide anti-virus policy. The Council does not accept any liability in respect of damage caused by any
virus that is not detected.

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient
and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution
or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast Ltd, an
innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more useful place for your human generated
data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find out more Click Here.

T

Page 37



Agenda Item 12

REPORT OF Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer

To: Community & Resources

Subject: Setting aside monies to support the Capital Program
Date: 07" December 2020

PURPOSE OF REPORT:
For Members to consider the recommendation of Internal Overview and Scrutiny from the
10™ November 2020 .

1. Introduction

1.1. A presentation was made to Internal Overview and Scrutiny on the 10" November
2020, pertaining to the projected financial surplus of £642k for the financial year
2020/21.

1.2. This report briefly details the key drivers behind the projection and the rationale
behind the recommendation from Internal Overview & Scrutiny.

2. Overview of the projected financial surplus for 2020/21

2.1. The Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in a great deal of financial uncertainty for local
authorities, with increased expenditure pressures and sharp reductions to their
income from fees and charges. Consequently central government has recognised the
need to offer financial support to the local authority sector. Throughout the financial
year there has been frequent announcements of additional central government
Covid-19 related grant funding.

2.2. The report presented to members of Internal O&S analysed the forecast surplus into

amounts pertaining to the Covid-19 pandemic and those arising from non Covid-19
related budget variances.

2.3. The forecast surplus attributable to Covid-19 being £502k and £140k arising from non
Covid-19 budget variances. The tables below detail the main variances

£'000 - £'000 - £'000 - NET
Favourable (Adverse) Favourable

Central Government Covid Support Grants
(tranches 1 -4) 1,187

Other Covid-19 " new burdens" fundings -

administration of business support grants etc 218
Compensation for lost fees and charges 342

Staff Training 44

Transport Related - members & staff related 20

Parking Income (517)
Reduced income from treasury deposits (89)
Hostel Income (reduced capacity & delayed

renovation) (42)
Court costs in respect of unpaid council tax (82)
Contractual Pressures (181)
Other Covid-19 expenditure (62)
Reduced Council Tax & Business Rates (336)
Subtotal Covid-19 related 1,811 (1,309) 502

Page 38



£'000 - £'000 - £'000 -NET
Favourable (Adverse) Favourable

Staff Vacancies - above £150k target 207 LEES
Planning Income 216

Cost Share - Recycling Income 73

Transport Related (Fuel, Repairs efc) 62

Garden Waste Collections 33 o
Housing Benefit Subsidy (98) *
Repairs to Torrington Pool Roof (65)

Legal Professional fees (100)

Transfer to Reserves - Property Maintenance (110)

Transfer to Reserves - Apprentices (51)

Other variances (27)

Subtotal - Non Covid variances 591 (451) 140

*xx* Staff Vacancies - circa £70k pertains to management restructure

*** Garden Waste Collections - Some of the additional take up of the service could be explained by
residents not being able to visit recycling centres at the start of the national lockdown

**Housing Benefit a proportion of the Housing Benefit subsidy shortfall will be Covid19 related
as the local authority was given additional homelessness responsibilities at the start of lockdown
A detailed exercise on an individual case by case would be required to determine the value

A rough estimate would be circa£20k (based on the B&B costs coded against Covid-19)

2.4.

2.5.

It is acknowledged that Torridge has been exceptionally fortunate in that the level of
Government funding allocated to it has so far exceeded the additional expenditure
pressures it has had to meet. Although, it must also be recognised that this cash
benefit only refers to 2020-21 and we forecast that our financial resources be will
adversely affected further in 2021-22, for which no Government funding has yet been
announced.

In addition to Government Funding, Torridge had seen a bounce back in income from
fees and charges since the first national lockdown, with Planning income being
particularly strong.

3. Funding Shortfall on the Council’s Capital Programme:

3.1.

3.2.

The funding shortfall on the capital programme of circa £56m was highlighted to
members of Internal Overview and Scrutiny. More in depth details these funding
pressures are detailed in a separate report to Community and Resources.

In light of the scale of the funding shortfall on the capital programme, members of
Internal Overview and Scrutiny voted unanimously to recommend to Community and
Resources that the projected surplus of £642k be earmarked to contribute towards
the capital programme.

Page 39



Implications

Legal Implications
The Council is required to set a balance annual budget

Financial Implications
These are contained in the report

Substainability Implications
These will form part of detail budget considerations

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
Forms part of the strategy process

Lead Member Views

Councillor Claire Hodson

The Council faces a very significant challenge in funding its extensive capital programme. It
is vitally important that members appreciate the scale of this challenge.

The Council has been fortunate, in a testing financial year, to be forecasting a surplus of
£642k. Given the scale of the funding shortfall on the Capital programme, it would be
prudent to set aside this surplus as a contribution towards bridging this gap.
Recommendation
That the £642K forecast surplus from 20/21 be utilised by the Capital Programme, as per
recommendation from Internal Overview and Scrutiny on the 10™ November 2020.
SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Consultations: Date of Consultation — 24" November 2020
Officers Consulted
e Steve Hearse Chief Executive,
e Staci Dorey Head of Legal & Governance and

Monitoring Officer
e Sean Kearney Head of Communities and Place

Contact Officer: David Heyes — Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer

Page 40



Agenda Iltem 13

REPORT OF Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer
To: Community & Resources

Subject: Capital Programme Update with New PIDs
Date: 07" December 2020

PURPOSE OF REPORT:
For Members to make recommendations to Full Council regarding new PIDs, and closing any
funding shortfall, to ensure the Capital Programme is fully funded going forwards.

1. Introduction

1.1. The Capital Programme is an ongoing forecast of capital investment in Torridge and
the resources that are available to fund these plans.

1.2. This report sets out the challenges facing the council to ensure the capital
programme is fully funded going forward. These are:

. Inflation — Build cost / Tender Price inflation of existing capital projects.

o New PID’s — To maintain & improve the councils existing infrastructure

o Funding Shortfall — Due to Inflation and additional PIDs, but also arising from
any future changes to capital funding such as the “New Homes Bonus”.

2. Capital Programme Overview

2.1. Torridge’'s Capital Programme is an ongoing forecast of the resources the Council is
planning to invest in its assets and future development opportunities and whilst
projects are allocated to specific years by nature projects quite often span financial
years and resources follow.

2.2. The approved Capital Programme at the start of 2020/21 included planned
investment of £23.1m over the period 2020/21 to 2025/26 (6 years).

2.3. The revised Capital Programme (See 3 below) has been updated for:
° The “Future High Streets Fund” Capital Project. (approved by full council)
o LEP grant of £400K towards the Burrows Centre
o Reduction in forecast income from the New Homes Bonus scheme
These has increased the Capital Programme to £32.8m.
2.4. The Capital Programme Funding is split between (see 4 below):
. Reserves & Receipts - £7.7M
. Forecast Funding - £16.7M
Approved Borrowing - £7.4M

Results in a shortfall of £1m.

2.5.  All capital projects proposed for inclusion in the Council’s Capital Programme must
be supported by a Project Initiation Document (PiD). The PiD will outline in sufficient
detail what the project entails, the costs and benefits it is expected to achieve with
particular reference to how it will contribute to Torridge’s Strategic Plan and the plans
for implementation. (See 5 below — for new suggested PIDs)

Page 41



2.6.  After the Capital Programme has been updated with the new PIDs, this increases the
Capital Programme to £42.0m. Total funding (current and expected in the future) is
£36.9m. This gives a shortfall (funding gap) of £5.1m. (See 6 below)

2.7. Options for consideration on how to close the funding gap (see 7 below). These
include potential capital receipts, and additional capital borrowing.

3. Revised Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2025/26 (6 Years)

3.1. Capital Programme updated for FHSF, LEP Grant for Burrows centre, and changes
in the forecast New Homes Bonus Scheme:

2021/22 Total

Capital Programme 20/21 to 25/26 To Funding Shortfall
2025/26

| Approved Programme | 23,087 ‘ | (22,364) ‘ ‘ 723 ‘

Additional Projects:
FHSF (Future High Street Fund) | 9687 | (9,687)] | -

Changes to Funding

Reduction to NHB Forecast 678 678
LEP funding for Burrows Centre (400) (400)
Approved Programme 32,774 ‘ | (31,773) ‘ ‘ 1,001 ‘

3.2. The Capital Programme has been split into the following categories:

Business Continuity Required to support the day to day running of the council

Projects underway, or which expose the council to high levels of

High Priority PID's and Works in Hand risk if not completed

Projects which expose the council to medium risk if not

Medium Priority PID undertaken

Low Priority Projects which have low risk associated with them.

Self-funding projects (through grants, or increased revenue

If-Fundin I
self-Funding contributions, etc)
.. Projects that align with the Council’s core values and strategic
Aspirational ) ) o
goals, but do not pose an immediate risk if not undertaken
Completed Projects completed

Page 42



3.3. The Capital Programme Summarised by Category, and by Year is as follows (for the
detailed Capital Programme by project see Appendix 1):

Capital Programme 20/21 to 25/26 TOTAL 20-21  21-22 22-23 23-24 24-25 25-26
Business Continuity 7,881 2,463 748 1,110 772 154 2,634
High Priority PID's and Works in Hand 9,118 3,290 5,722 6 100
Medium Priority PID 442 103 189 150
Low Priority
Self-Funding 10,721 787 6,401 2,320 1,141 72
Aspirational 4,314 214 2,100 2,000
Completed | | 208| | 298] | | | | |

32,774 ‘ 7,155 15,160 5,586 1,913 326 2,634

Page 43



4. Capital Programme — Funding Position

The levels of financing available to meet capital investment has also been reviewed
including forecast sales of council assets (capital receipts), external grant
contributions and sums allocated from the receipt of new homes bonus.

The below table splits the funding between:
- Current Capital Funds
- Future Forecast Capital Funding
- Future Borrowing

The Current funding position has a gap/shortfall of £1m

2021/22
Total Capital Programme - APPROVED To
2025/26
Current Approved Capital Projects | 32,774 ‘
Current Capital Reserves (5,581)
Capital Grants Received (2,100)
Current Shortfall (28.10.2020) | 25,003 |
Future Forecast Revenue Contribution (1,292)
Future Forecast New Homes Bonus (1,889)
Future Forecast Capital Receipts (5,060) Note 1
Future Forecast Capital Grants (8,412) Note2
Forecast Shortfall (before borrowing) | 8,441 ‘
Approved borrowing (7,440) Note3
Forecast Shortfall (After borrowing) | 1,001 ‘

Note 1 : £3m FHSF (Future High Street Fund), £1m Caddsdown Phase3,
£0.6m Holsworthy Agri Business, £0.5m Sale of 3 Depots

Note 2 : £4.3m FHSF, £1m Caddsdown Phase3, £1.5m Holsworthy Agri Business, £0.225m Environment
Agency Match funding, £1m Disabled Facility Grants, £0.4M Burrows Centre LEP

Note 3 : £2.4m FHSF, £4m Depot, £1m Homelessness
Accommodation

Page 44



5. New Capital PIDs

5.1. The following PID’s have been submitted/suggested for approval and subsequent
inclusion in the Capital Programme.

They fall into the following funding categories:

Rolling Programmes — Annual contributions from revenue to ensure the
continuing capital maintenance requirements of the Council’s assets

New PIDs to be funded from the Rolling Programmes — Specific projects that
would come out of the rolling programmes (if approved)

New PIDs to be funded from “Planned Maintenance” reserve — Capital
maintenance works that are required, which can be funded from existing funding
reserves.

Self-Funding PIDs — Projects that would only proceed if they are self-funding,
i.e. sufficient grants obtained, or sufficient revenue savings projected to justify.

Unfunded PIDs — Projects which are a significant risk to the Council if not
undertaken, where there is no current funding identified.

Notice of Motion — Projects which have a specific “Notice of Motion” relating to
them (also currently no funding identified)

Page 45



00 N o unn b

10
11
12
13

14

15
16
17
18
19
20

21
22
23

2021/22

New / Suggested PIDs To
2025/26
Per
PIDs - Rolling Programmes Year
Car Parks 80 400
Capital Improvement Program - Property Assets 150 750
1610 / Leisure 180 900
Note: Funded from Annual revenue contribution 410 2,050
New PIDs - To be funded from Capital Improvements Programme
Riverbank house Phase 2 (IT, Greenhouse) 200
Windmill Lane Refurb 60
Torrington Pool Roof 70
Caddsdown Paths 40
Bridge Buildings (if not sold) 60
430
New PIDs - Funded from Planned maintenance Reserve
Muslim Burials 40
Skate Park Acoustics 60
Harbour (Shipping works) 70
Westward Ho WC Drains 35
Vic Park War memorial (relocation + paths) 35
240
New PIDs (Self Funding)
TDC Units - Tamar Way (Demolish & Rebuild?) 1,000
1,000
New PIDs (no Current Funding) Year
Fish Doc Plant Renewals 23/24 160
1610 (upon contract end) 21/22 650
Depot - Increased Costs 1,350
Town Hall Roof - Increased Costs Over 2 -3 yrs 760
Grounds Maintenance Equipment 200
Linear Defence - Increased Costs (Match Funded by EA) 24/25 3,000
6,120
Notice of Motion - Pannier Mkt & Market House ?
Notice of Motion - Retractable Cover (Pool in Vic Park) ?
Play Strategy - Over the £250K already in. ?

Total of Suggested new PIDs

9,410

Page 46




6. Revised Capital Programme and Funding Gap

6.1. Capital Programme and Funding Gap:

2021/22 Total

Total Capital Programme - with NEW PIDS To Funding Shortfall
2025/26

Current Approved Capital Projects ‘ 32,774 | ‘ (31,773) | -
New PIDs:
Rolling Programme (funded from additional revenue contributions) ‘ 2,050 | ‘ (2,050) | -
New PIDS (Planned Maintenance Reserve funded) ‘ 240 | ‘ (240) | -
New PIDS (Self Funded, e.g revenue savings, grants) ‘ 1,000 | ‘ (1,000) | !

New PIDs (no Current Funding) 6,120 (1,500) * -

Capital Projects (After New PIDs) 42,184 | ‘ (36,563) | !

* £1,500K Match Funding from the Environment Agency

* £1.5m of match funding from Environment Agency

Note: Funding Gap (Shortfall) has increased to £5.6m

Page 47



7. Closing the Gap (Shortfall)

7.1. Potential Capital Receipts vs Borrowing:

Closing the Budget Gap

‘ Budget Gap 5,621
Potential Mitigation:
No/Minimal TDC contribution to Burrows Centre 500 500
Use Strategic Acquisitions Reserve 700 * 700
Cleave Wood Capital Receipts 1,280 -
Tadworthy 600 -
Bridge Buildings 335 -
Westward Ho! Park 100 100
Contribution from 20/21 642 642

‘ Reduced Budget Gap | 1,464 | 3,679

Borrowing to close the Gap 1,464 3,679

‘ Eliminated Budget Gap ‘ -

1

‘ Annual Revenue Cost ‘ 117 ‘ A

Note: Revenue impact of £80K per year for every £1m Borrowed from PWLB

(Assumes borrowing over 20 years @ fixed 3%)
* If removed, then nothing included for development of regeneration
sites:

- Land around HABC, Holsworthy
- Hatchmoor, Torrington

- Middledock, Appledore

- Caddsdown Ph3, Bideford

A For comparison, increasing car parking charges by 10% would generate revenue of £130K (20% would generate £260K)

Note: Option 1 is optimistic as not all receipts may be realised, and the Cleave wood Capital
receipt has some conditions attached, which may not be met by our current capital projects.

Any borrowing will have an annual impact on the revenue budgets, and therefore needs to
be aligned with the council’s medium-term financial plan.

Page 48



7.2. Other Options for consideration:
. Simplified Environmental Centre = possible saving of £E1m+
. Sale of TDC Assets to generate Capital Receipts:

. Removal of projects from the Capital Program

Implications

Legal Implications
The Council is required to set a balance annual budget

Financial Implications
These are contained in the report

Substainability Implications
These will form part of detail budget considerations

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
Forms part of the strategy process

Lead Member Views

Councillor Claire Hodson

The Council faces a very significant challenge in funding its extensive capital program. It is
vitally important that members appreciate the scale of challenge faced by the Council in
funding its capital program. Members should be aware when proposing new capital projects
there are no unallocated resources set aside to meet these pressures.

Ultimately any shortfall on funding for the capital program which is not addressed can only

be met by additional borrowing which increases the pressure on the Council’s revenue
budget.

Page 49



Recommendations:

Recommendations to take to Full Council

8. That:

a) The Capital Projects (PIDs) listed at 5.1 are approved.

o

o

o

Remove any that require further work, or that members do not deem a
priority at this time.

Recommend to Full council the next steps on the “notices of motion” in
the context of a capital funding shortfall.

Recommend the £642K surplus from 20/21 be utilised by the Capital
Programme, as per recommendation from Internal Overview and
Scrutiny on the 10™ November 2020.

b) Recommend how the Gap is to be closed, e.g.

Option 1 from 7.1 (including additional borrowing of just under £2m)
Combination of Option 1 from 7.1, and some savings from a
streamlined environmental centre

Combination of Option 1 from 7.1, not approving the “Linear Defence”
Project at this time, with the recommendation to seek additional
funding, or look for cost saving alternatives.

Option 2 from 7.1 (with just under £5m of extra borrowing)

Members review the capital program to remove discretionary and non-
essential projects

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations:

Date of Consultation —

Leader - Councillor
Deputy Leader — Councillor

Officers Consulted
e Steve Hearse Chief Executive,
e Staci Dorey Head of Legal & Governance and
Monitoring Officer
e Sean Kearney Head of Communities and Place

Contact Officer: David Heyes — Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer

Background Papers:
Appendix 1

Page 50



Appendix 1

Projects

2020-2021

2021-2022

2022-2023

2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 . Totals

|
Business Continuity
Car Park Maintenance and Refurbishment 271 271
Capital Improvement Program - Property Assets 291 291
Victoria Park Paths & Services 100 100
Disabled Facilites Grant 808 500 500 1,808
IT Replacement & IT General (52) 20 20 20 80 80 168
IT Desktop Strategy 230 230
Vehicle Replacement Program 727 180 557 642 74 2,554 4,734
Play Area Program 79 40 25 110 254
CCTV 9 8 8 25
1610 / Leisure
Depot Provision (0) 5,450 5,450
Westward Ho Linear Defense Works 451 451
Northam Burrows Estuary Works 157 157
Torrington Cemetery Extension 44 100 144
Torridge Bowling Club Wall 46 46
The Burrows Centre 2,004 2,004
Capital Digitisation 100 100
Bucks Mill Lime Kiln 19 6 6 31
Torrington Pannier Market Refurb 45 45
Torrington ATP 150 150
Torrington Sports Hall Roof 32 32
Town Hall Roof 40 40
Homelessness Accommodation 432 432
HR Payroll System 36 36
Medium Priority PID
Affordable Housing 38 70 100 208
Decent Homes Fund 47 30 50 127
Barton House Remodelling 77 77
Caddsdown Telephony - Part Finished 18 18
Northam Burrows Gabions - Appledore Bridge 12 12
[selfFunding ]
Holsworhty Commercial Land Expansion 47 47
Cleave Wood (7) (7)
Strategic Property Reserve 794 200 994
FHSF 6,154 2,320 1,141 72 9,687
Aspirational
Gypsy & Traveller Site Provsion 100 100
Caddsdown Phase I 2,000 2,000
Holsworthy Agribusiness 2,100 2,100
Westward Ho Seafront Improvements 46 46
Westward Ho Seawall 50 50
e
Cattle Market Demolition 80 80
Torridge Pool Boilers 36 36
Westward Ho Development Sites 18 18
Church View Weare Gifford 16 16
Torridge Transformation (5) (5)
Calf Street Play Area 24 24
Caddsdown Phase 2 Plot 3 147 147
7,155 15,160 5,586 1,913 326 2,634 | 32,774 |
Projects 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 -
Business Continuity 2,463 748 1,110 772 154 2,634 7,881
High Priority PID's and Works in Hand 3,290 5,722 6 100 9,118
Medium Priority PID 103 189 150 442
Low Prioirity
Self-Funding 787 6,401 2,320 1,141 72 10,721
Aspirational 214 2,100 2,000 4,314
Completed 298 298
7,155 15,160 5,586 1,913 326 2,634 32,774

Page 51



Agenda Item 16

Document is Restricted

Page 52



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Community & Resources Committee meeting held on 19th October 2020
	3 Action List
	5 Forward Plan
	9 Notice of Motion - Campervan Overnight Parking in Churchfields Car Park, Appledore
	10 Councillor Community Grants Scheme
	11 Decision Taken Under Urgency Procedure
	11a - ARG Policy Nov 20
	11b - ARG Urgent Decision (003)_redacted

	12 Setting Aside Monies to Support the Capital Program
	13 Capital Programme Update with New PIDs
	13a - Appendix1 - Cap Prog - C&R (Dec2020)

	16 Application for Hardship Panel

